
 
Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk 

This document can be made available in other formats (large print, audio tape, computer disk and 
Braille) on request from Democratic Services on telephone number 01905 728713 or by emailing 

democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
 

 

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

Agenda 
Pension Board 
 
Wednesday, 5 April 2017, 2.00 pm 
County Hall, Worcester 
 



 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 

WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

 Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  

 Sponsorship by a 3
rd

 party of your member or election expenses 

 Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 
you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 

 Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 

 Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 
share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 

 
      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

 Register it within 28 days and  

 Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  
- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 

      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 

 No need to register them but 

 You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 
  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  

a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 
 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 

 affects your pecuniary interests OR  
relates to a planning or regulatory matter 

 AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 
 
DON'T FORGET 

 If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

 Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

 Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 
Simon Mallinson Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f 



 

Agenda produced and published by Simon Mallinson, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall, 
Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact Simon Lewis, Committee Officer,  on 01905 
846621,  
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website 
 
Date of Issue: Tuesday, 28 March 2017 

 
 

Pension Board 
Wednesday, 5 April 2017, 2.00 pm, County Hall, Worcester 
 
Membership:  Mr K Bray (Independent Chairman) 

 
Employers Representatives 
Mr D Harlow 
Mr M J Hart 
 
Member Representatives 
Ms L-M Chapman 
Mr S Harrison 
 

Agenda 
 

Item No Subject Page No 
 

1  Apologies 
 

 

2  Declarations of Interest 
 

 

3  Confirmation of Minutes - 8 February 2017 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 8 February 2017. 
(previously circulated) 

 

4  Pensions Committee - 13 March 2017 
Pension Administration update – for review by the Board 
Malvern Hills Conservators – for review by the Board 
Risk Register – for review by the Board 
Pension Fund Investment update – for review by the Board 
LGPS Central update – for review by the Board 
LGPS Central Cost Share – for review by the Board 
Investment Strategy Statement – for review by the Board (an updated 
version post Pensions Committee is attached) 
 
The Agenda and Minutes have previously been sent to you. Please bring 
your copy with you to the meeting.  
 

1 - 18 

5  External Audit Plan 2016/17 
For review by the Board. 
 

19 - 36 

6  Pension Board Member Training 
For review/action by the Board. 
 

37 - 38 



Item No Subject Page No 
 

 

7  Pension Board Work Plan 
For review/action by the Board. 
 

39 - 40 

8  Any Other Business 
 

 

 



 

 

Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund 
Investment Strategy Statement 2017 

  
1. Introduction  
 
This is the Investment Strategy Statement (the ‘Statement’) of the Worcestershire County 
Council Pension Fund (the Fund) as required by regulation 7 of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 (the 
“Regulations”). In preparing this Statement, the Pensions Committee has consulted with 
such persons as it considered appropriate. 
 
Worcestershire County Council is the administering authority for the Fund under the 
regulations. Worcestershire County Council delegates responsibility for the administration 
and management of the Fund to the Pensions Committee. The Pensions Committee has 
oversight of the implementation of the management arrangements for the Fund's assets and 
comprises of Elected Members and one Employee Representative and one Employer 
Representative. In addition, the Fund has the statutory Local Pensions Board whose role is 
to assist in the good governance of the scheme by ensuring compliance with statutory and 
regulatory duty. Finally, the Pension Investment Advisory Panel advises the Pensions 
Committee on investment issues relating to the Fund. Neither the Local Pensions Board or 
the Pension Investment Advisory Panel have any decision-making powers. 
 
This statement which is reflected in the Strategic Allocation in Appendix A demonstrates the 
importance of Asset allocation on returns over the long term. 
 
The Statement is subject to review at least annually and from time to time on any material 
changes to any aspects of the Fund, its liabilities, finances and its attitude to risk which they 
judge to have a bearing on the stated investment policy. In preparing this statement, the 
Committee has considered advice from the investment consultant. 
 
The responsibilities of relevant parties are set out in Appendix B. 
 
The Fund’s Statement of Investment Beliefs are set out in Appendix D. 
 
Related Fund policies and statements are as follows and are publicly available on the Fund’s 
website: 
 
• Funding Strategy Statement  
• Governance Compliance Statement 
• Policy Statement on Communication Strategy 
• Policy Statement on Governance Strategy 
 
 
2. Fund Objectives  
 
The primary objectives of the Fund are to:  
 

(a) ensure that sufficient assets are available to meet liabilities as they fall due; 
 

(b) maximise the return at an acceptable level of risk. 
 
 
 

Page 1



 

 

In addition, the Fund has the following objectives:  
 
• To be a leading performer in the LGPS sector  
• To provide excellent customer service  
 
3. Risk  
 
The risk tolerance of the Fund determined through working with the Pensions committee, the 
investment managers, officers and independent advisors through the setting of investment 
beliefs, funding and investment objectives. This is incorporated into the Strategic Investment 
Allocation Benchmark (SIAB), bands and benchmarks. Risk taken against that benchmark is 
monitored by the Pensions Committee using a risk register and risk management tools as 
advised by the Fund's fund managers, investment advisers and the Fund's Actuary. . 
 
The fund is exposed to Investment, operational, governance and funding risks. These risks 
are identified, measured, monitored and then managed. This is carried out using risk 
registers with section responsibility and over sight from the Chief Financial Officer.  
 
The principal risks affecting the Fund are as follows:  
 
Funding Risks Liabilities versus the Strategic Investment Allocation Benchmark 
(SIAB) 
 

a) The risk of a deterioration in the funding level of the Fund. This could be due to 
assets failing to grow in line with the developing cost of meeting liabilities or 
economic factors such as unexpected inflation increasing the pension and benefit 
payments. 
 
The Fund manages this risk by setting a strategic asset allocation benchmark 
assisted and the Fund's investment advisor. The strategic asset allocation 
benchmark seeks to achieve the appropriate balance between generating the 
required long-term return, while taking account of market volatility and the nature of 
the Fund’s liabilities. It assesses risk relative to that benchmark by monitoring the 
Fund’s asset allocation and investment returns relative to the benchmark.  
 

b) The risk of changing demographics such as improvement in longevity and other 
demographic factors, increasing the cost of benefits. 
 
The Fund monitors this by reviewing mortality and other demographic experience 
and assumptions which could influence the cost of the benefits. These assumptions 
are considered formally at the triennial valuation. 
 

c) Systemic risk, i.e., the possibility of failure of asset classes and/or active investment 
managers results in an increase in the cost of meeting the liabilities. 
 
The Fund mitigates systemic risk through a diversified portfolio with exposure to a 
wide range of asset classes, portfolio holdings and different management styles. 
 

d) Inflation risk  
 
The fund mitigates inflation risk through holding a portfolio of growth and inflation 
linked assets. Inflation risk is considered at least triennially in the setting of the SIAB 
and triennially as part of the actuarial valuation. 
 
 

Page 2



 

 

e) Future Investment Returns (Discount rate) risk  
 
The funding and investment strategies are inter-linked and discount rate risk is 
mitigated through derivation based on the underlying long term investment strategy. 
Discount rates are considered at least triennially in the setting of the SIAB and 
triennially as part of the actuarial valuation. 
 

f) Currency risk that the currency of the Fund’s SIAB underperforms relative to sterling 
(i.e., the currency of the liabilities).  
 
The currency risk of the benchmark is considered at least triennially in the setting of 
the SIAB. Recommended changes will be expressed through changes in the 
benchmark and implemented by the investment managers 
 

Asset Risks (the portfolio versus the SIAB)  
 

a) Concentration risk that a significant allocation to any single asset category and its 
underperformance relative to expectation would result in difficulties in achieving 
funding objectives.  
 

b) Illiquidity risk that the Fund cannot meet its immediate liabilities because it has 
insufficient liquid assets.  

 
c) Currency risk that the currency of the Fund’s assets underperforms relative to the 

SIAB.  
 

d) Manager underperformance when the fund managers fail to achieve the rate of 
investment return assumed in setting their mandates.  

 
e) Responsible Investment (RI) risks that are not given due consideration by the Fund 

or its investment managers. 
 

The Fund manages these asset risks by:-  
 

- Constraining how far Fund investments deviate significantly from the SIAB by setting 
diversification guidelines and the SIAB strategic ranges.  

 
- By investing in a range of investment mandates each of which has a defined 

objective, performance benchmark and manager process which, taken in aggregate, 
constrain risk within the Fund’s expected parameters.  

 

- By investing across a range of liquid assets, including quoted equities and bonds, the 
Fund has recognised the need for some access to liquidity in the short term.  

 

- Robust financial planning and clear operating procedures for all significant activities 
including regular review and monitoring manager performance against their mandate 
and investment process.  

 

- In appointing several investment managers, the Fund has considered the risk of 
underperformance by any single investment manager.  

 

- The Fund actively addresses environmental, social and governance risks through 
implementation of its Responsible Investment (RI) beliefs. 

Page 3



 

 

The Fund is aware that investing in overseas equities introduces an element of currency risk, 
but given the level of diversification within the Fund, the Pensions Committee is comfortable 
taking this risk in general but may take action to mitigate potentially significant risks as and 
when they are identified.  
 
The Fund invests in accordance with the investment restrictions stipulated by the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations. 
 
Operational Risk  
 

a) Transition risk of incurring unexpected costs in relation to the transition of assets 
amongst managers.  
 
When carrying out significant transitions, the Fund takes professional advice and 
considers the appointment of specialist transition managers in order to mitigate this 
risk when it is cost effective to do so.  

 
b) Custody risk of losing economic rights to Fund assets, when held in custody or when 

being traded.  
 
These risks are managed by:  
 

- The use of a global custodian for custody of assets.  

- The use of formal contractual arrangements for all investments.  

 
 
When the Fund's investments are pooled in April 2018 the Asset servicer contract will 
include depositary protection over investment vehicles. 
 

c) Credit default with the possibility of default of a counterparty in meeting its 
obligations. The Fund monitors this type of risk by means of:  
 

- Maintaining a comprehensive risk register with regular reviews.  

- In-depth due diligence prior to making any investment.  

 
The Fund monitors and manages risks in all areas through a process of regular 
scrutiny/oversight and reporting of KPIs of its service providers and audit of the 
operations they conduct for the Fund. 
 

4. Investment Strategy  
 
The Committee has translated its objectives into a suitable strategic investment allocation 
benchmark (SIAB) and structure for the Fund (set out in Appendix A) taking into account 
both the liability structure and the objectives set out above. The Fund benchmark is 
consistent with the Pensions Committee’s views on the appropriate balance between 
generating a satisfactory long-term return on investments whilst taking account of market 
volatility and risk and the nature of the Fund’s liabilities. The Investment beliefs in appendix 
D also assist in formulating the investment strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

The Pension Committee monitors investment strategy relative to the agreed asset allocation 
benchmark and strategic ranges. If ranges are breached, then appropriate action is taken by 
the Chief Financial Officer. In addition to ongoing monitoring the investment strategy is 
formally reviewed annually by Pensions Committee. Furthermore, specific consideration is 
given to investment strategy in the light of information arising from each triennial actuarial 
valuation. 
 
5. Diversification  
 
The fund will be diversified across multiple asset classes with different risk return 
expectations and correlations to deliver the targeted return of the Fund. Appendix A shows 
the Strategic Investment Allocation Benchmark (SIAB) and strategic ranges.  
 
6. Day-to-Day Management of the Assets  
 
Investment management structure  
 
The Pensions Committee retains responsibility for the investment strategy of the scheme but 
has delegated oversight of its implementation to the Chief Financial Officer. The day to day 
management of the Funds’ investments is delegated to the Fund's external Investment 
Managers.  
 
External Investment Managers  
 
The Fund has appointed a number of investment managers all of whom are authorised 
under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 to undertake investment business. The 
investment managers are required to comply with LGPS investment regulations. 
 
Suitable Investments  
 
Subject to the LGPS regulations on allowable investments the Fund may invest in a wide 
range of assets and strategies including quoted equity, Government and Non-Government 
bonds, money markets, traded options, financial futures and derivatives, alternative 
strategies including Infrastructure and Property Pooled Funds. The fund uses external 
managers to carry out stock lending ensuring suitable controls/risk parameters are put in 
place to prevent losses. Where an asset class/strategy is not expected to help in delivering 
the risk adjusted investment return required it will not be held. 
 
When new asset classes are discovered not listed above then approval will be sought from 
the Pensions Committee after receiving advice on its suitability and diversification benefits. 
 
The Fund may also make use of contracts for difference and other derivatives either directly 
or in pooled funds when investing in these products, for the purpose of efficient portfolio 
management or to hedge specific risks. 
 
The Fund, after seeking appropriate investment advice, has agreed specific benchmarks 
with each manager so that, in aggregate, they are consistent with the overall asset allocation 
for the Fund. The Fund’s investment managers will hold a mix of investments which reflects 
their views relative to their respective benchmarks. Within each major market and asset 
class, the managers will maintain diversified portfolios through direct investment or pooled 
vehicles and a mix of asset types across a range of geographies in order to provide 
diversification of returns.  
 
 
 

Page 5



 

 

Expected Return on the Investments  
 
Over the long-term, it is expected that the investment returns will be at least in line with the 
assumptions underlying the actuarial valuation (the discount rate). The individual mandates 
are expected to match or exceed the specific targets set for each portfolio over time. 
 
Investment Restrictions  
 
The investment management arrangements prohibit the holding of investments not defined 
as ‘investments’ in the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of 
Funds) Regulations 2016. Operating within the investment regulations, the Fund determines 
investments that are acceptable and approved as such by the Pensions Committee.  
 
Additional Assets  
 
Assets in respect of members’ additional voluntary contributions are held separately from the 
main Fund assets. These assets are held with Equitable Life and Scottish Widows.   
 
Equitable Life operates an AVC policy to manage past contributions for the Fund; there are 
however are no current contributors to this policy.   
 
The Fund monitors, from time to time, the suitability and performance of these vehicles.  
 
Realisation of Investments  
 
In general, the Fund’s investment managers have discretion in the timing of realisations of 
investments and in considerations relating to the liquidity of those investments. The Fund’s 
liquidity characteristics are monitored on a regular basis and the majority of the Fund’s 
investments may be realised quickly if required. A number of the Fund’s alternative 
investments in Pooled Infrastructure and Property Funds, may be difficult to realise quickly in 
certain circumstances. The Fund will ensure that the Liquidity of the investments is suitable 
to meet future cash flow requirements. 
 
Monitoring the Performance of Fund Investments  
 
The performance of the external investments is independently measured. In addition, officers 
of the Fund meet external investment managers (both segregated and pooled) regularly to 
review their arrangements and the investment performance. The Pensions Committee meets 
at least quarterly to review markets, asset classes and funds. 
 
7. Day-to-Day Custody of the Assets  
 
The Fund has appointed a global custodian with regard to the safekeeping of the assets in 
the Fund and other investment administrative requirements.  
 
8. Stocklending  
 
Stocklending is undertaken in respect of the Fund’s quoted equities holdings through the 
custodian / asset servicer. There is a formal stock lending agreement and approved 
collateral. Stock lending may also take place in pooled investment vehicles held by the Fund. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

9. Pooling  
 
The Fund is entering the LGPS Central pool with the understanding that the pooled 
investments will benefit from lower investment costs, greater investment capability and 
access to more uncorrelated asset classes. Becoming an FCA registered investment 
manager will lead to improved governance, transparency and reporting giving the Pension 
Fund assurance that its investments are being carried out effectively. 
 
The Fund intends to invest all its assets into the LGPS pool but will maintain some cash 
balances at the fund. Investment strategy will be owned by the fund with advice from the 
fund manager/operator and Independent advisor. 
 
10. Responsible Investment  
 
The Funds approach to Responsible Investment is set out below. The Fund believes that 
effective management of financially material Responsible Investment risks should support 
the Fund’s requirement to protect returns over the long term. The Fund will seek to further 
integrate Responsible Investment factors (adding corporate governance, environmental and 
social factors to the existing financial factors) into the investment process across all relevant 
asset classes. The Fund will vote on all investments where possible and engage with 
companies when engagement will add value to the Fund. The Fund works with like-minded 
investors to promote best practice in long term stewardship of investments. The fund will not 
seek to exclude investments that are not barred by UK law. 
 
RI Beliefs and Guiding Principles  
 
The Fund’s RI beliefs and guiding principles underpin its RI approach. 
 
RI integration  
 
The Fund believes that effective management of financially material RI risks should support 
the Fund’s requirement to protect returns over the long term. Investment managers will seek 
to incorporate RI into their investment process. With regard to climate change risks, the 
Fund recognises that the scale of the potential impacts is such that a proactive and 
precautionary approach is needed in order to address them.  
 
The Fund considers RI to be relevant to the performance of the entire Fund across asset 
classes.  
 
There are some investment opportunities arising from environmental and social challenges 
which can be captured so long as they are aligned with the Fund’s investment objectives and 
strategy.  
 
The Fund recognises the need to operate at a market-wide level to promote improvements 
that will help it to deliver sustainable long term growth. 
 
Engagement versus Exclusion  
 
Investee companies with robust governance structures should be better positioned to handle 
the effects of shocks and stresses of future events. The Fund adopts a policy of risk 
monitoring and engagement with companies with sub-optimal governance of financially 
material RI issues, in order to positively influence company behaviour and enhance 
shareholder value; influence that would be lost through a divestment approach. The Fund 
extends this principle of “engagement for positive change” to the due diligence, appointment 
and monitoring of external fund managers.  

Page 7



 

 

 
The Fund believes that it will improve its effectiveness by acting collectively with other like-
minded investors because it increases the likelihood that it will be heard by the company, 
fund manager or other relevant stakeholder compared with acting alone. 
 
Voting  
 
Where practical, the Fund aims to vote in every single market in which it invests in alignment 
with corporate governance best practice guidelines. In the interests of sending a consistent 
signal to investee companies, the Fund has decided to delegate responsibility to its external 
Investment Managers for analysis of governance issues and executing its proxy voting rights 
across all markets in which it invests. At the present time, the Fund believes that the 
advantage of a consistent signal outweighs the inherent disadvantages to disconnecting the 
voting function from the investment and engagement decisions of external fund managers. 
 
11. Compliance with This Statement  
 
The Fund will monitor compliance with this statement. In particular, it will ensure its 
investment decisions are exercised with a view to giving effect to the principles contained in 
the statement, so far as is reasonably practicable. 
 
12. Compliance with Myners  
 
Following from the Myners’ report of 2000 into institutional investment in the UK, the 
Government, after consultation, indicated it would take forward all of the report 
recommendations identifying investment principles to apply to pension schemes.  
 
These principles cover the arrangements for effective investment management decision-
making, setting and monitoring clear investment objectives, focus on asset allocation, 
arrangements to receive appropriate expert advice, explicit manager mandates, shareholder 
activism, use of appropriate investment benchmarks, measurement of performance, 
transparency in investment management arrangements and regular reporting.  
 
The Myners’ principles have since been updated, and the Fund continues to support and 
comply with them. Details of compliance are set out in the Fund’s Governance Compliance 
Statement, which can be found on the Fund’s website. 
 
List of Appendices  
Appendix A – Strategic Allocation Investment Benchmark (SIAB) and Ranges.  
Appendix B – Roles and Responsibilities  
Appendix C – List of Advisers  
Appendix D – Statement of Investment Beliefs  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

Appendix A – Strategic Allocation Investment Benchmark and Ranges 
 

Asset Allocation % Manager, Method & Performance Target 

Actively Managed Equities 

Far East Developed 10.0 Nomura Asset Management - FTSE All World Asia 
Pacific Index + 1.5% 

Emerging Markets  10.0 JP Morgan Asset Management and Schroder Investment 
Management - FTSE - All World Emerging Market Index 
+2.0% 

Passively Managed Equities - Market Capitalisation Indices 

United Kingdom 23.5 Legal and General Asset Management - FTSE All Share 
Index 

North America 9.0 Legal and General Asset Management - FTSE All World 
North America - Developed Series Index 

Europe ex - UK  7.5 Legal and General Asset Management - FTSE All World 
Europe ex UK Index - Developed Series Index 

Passively Managed Equities – Alternative Indices 

Global 15.0 

 

Legal and General Asset Management: 

- 1/3 GPAE - FTSE-RAFI Dev. 1000 Equity Fund  

- 1/3 GPBK - MSCI World Mini Volatility Index 

- 1/3 STAJ - CSUF - STAJ MF36726/36727 

Actively Managed Bonds 

Bonds Managed 
Actively 

10.0 JP Morgan Asset Management - 100% Barclays Global 
Aggregate Corporate Bond Index – Hedged into GBP 

Actively Managed Alternative Assets  

Property & Infrastructure 15.0 Through a mix of Green Investment Bank, Invesco, 
Hermes, Walton Street and Venn Partners 

 100.0  

 
 
Ranges 
 

Asset Type Core Asset Allocation Range  % 

Equities 75% 70 - 85 

Bonds 10% 5 – 15 

Infrastructure and Property 15% 5 – 15 

 

Page 9



 

 

Appendix B - Roles and Responsibilities 
 
Pensions Committee  
 
 
The Pension Committee discharges the responsibilities of the Council as Administering 
Authority of the Fund pursuant to Section 101 and Regulations under Section 7 of the 
Superannuation Act 1972.  
 
The Pension Committee discharges the responsibilities for management of the 
administration of the Fund. However it will take views from the Pension Administration 
Advisory Forum to enable it to discharge its duties effectively. 
 
The Pension Committee discharges the responsibilities for the strategic management of the 
Fund's assets. However, it will take strategic advice from the Pension Investment Advisory 
Panel to enable it to discharge its duties effectively. The dates of Pension Committee 
meetings are synchronised with those of the Pension Investment Advisory Panel to ensure 
investment decisions are reviewed without unnecessary delay.  
 
The Council appoints the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Pension Committee.  The 
Chairman of the particular meeting has a second or casting vote in the case of equality of 
votes. 
 
The Pension Committee is a formal committee of the Council and comprises a total of 8    
voting members:  
 

 5 Worcestershire County Councillors  

 1 co-opted Councillor as nominated by Herefordshire Council (being the second 
largest employer in the Fund)  

 1 co-opted voting employer representative and  

 1 co-opted voting employee representative from a relevant Union.   
 
The 5 County Councillor members are formally appointed by the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services in accordance with political balance requirements from time to time and 
the nominations of the relevant Group Leaders, and the 3 co-optees are co-opted by the 
Chairman of the Committee.  
 
The Pension Committee is advised by on an ad hoc basis by an Independent Financial 
Adviser and the Fund's Actuary.  
 
Pension Committee Terms of Reference:  
 

The Pension Committee meets at least quarterly or otherwise as necessary to take decisions 
on: 
 

 Changes to the Statement of Investment Principles, including the strategic 
benchmark for asset allocation, Investment Manager benchmarks and 
Investment Manager targets.  

 The termination and appointment of Investment Managers and associated 
professional service providers. 

 The termination and appointment of the Fund's Independent Financial Adviser, 
Performance Measurement Consultant, Global Custodian and Actuary. 

Page 10



 

 

 The Pensions Administration Strategy Statement, Policy Statement on 
Communication Strategy, Policy Statement on Governance Strategy, Funding 
Strategy Statement and Governance Compliance Statement.  

 The Triennial and Interim Actuarial Valuations. 

 The approval of the Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts. 

 The approval of the Pension Fund annual and triennial budgets. 

 Key outstanding risks as identified in the Pension Fund Risk Register. 

 The Pension Administration Advisory Forum arrangement and regular Forum 
reports, which consider and address outstanding member and employer issues 
and concerns.  

 The Pension Investment Advisory Panel arrangement and regular Advisory 
Panel reports, which monitor performance of the Fund's assets. 

 Requests for admission of qualifying Community and Transferee Bodies wishing 
to join the Fund.  

 Key pension policy discretions that are the responsibility of the Administering 
Authority.  

 
All elected members and voting co-optees of the Pension Committee are subject to the 
Worcestershire County Council Code of Conduct for Members, and must therefore register 
and keep updated their Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as required by the law and Code 
and disclose potential conflicts of interest as required by that Code. 
    
Members of the Pension Committee are expected to hold the appropriate knowledge and 
skills to discharge their responsibility effectively. 
 
The responsibility for advising the Pension Committee is delegated to the Chief Financial 
Officer.   
 
Members of the Pension Committee have equal access to Pension Committee agenda 
papers and associated appendices  in accordance with the legislation and constitutional 
Rules relating to access to information for committees.  Formal meetings of the Committee 
will take place in public unless it has resolved to move into exempt session in accordance 
with the applicable access to information provisions.  
 
Local Pensions Board  
 
The role of the Local Pensions Board is to assist in the good governance of the scheme 
through the monitoring of Fund performance and adherence to statutory duties.  
The Board consists of two employer and two member representatives and an Independent 
Chair.  
 
The Pensions Board is not a decision-making body, nor does it hold a scrutiny function.  
 
The first core function of the Board is to assist the Administering Authority in securing 
compliance with the Regulations, any other legislation relating to the governance and 
administration of the Scheme, and requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in 
relation to the Scheme. Within this extent of this core function the Board may determine the 
areas it wishes to consider including but not restricted to:  
 

a) Review regular compliance monitoring reports which shall include reports to and 
decisions made under the Regulations by the Committee.  
b) Review management, administrative and governance processes and procedures in 
order to ensure they remain compliant with the Regulations, relevant legislation and in 
particular the Code.  

Page 11



 

 

c) Review the compliance of scheme employers with their duties under the Regulations 
and relevant legislation.  

d) Assist with the development of and continually review such documentation as is 
required by the Regulations.  

e) Assist with the development of and continually review scheme member and employer 
communications as required by the Regulations and relevant legislation.  

f) Monitor complaints and performance on the administration and governance of the 
scheme.  

g) Assist with the application of the Internal Dispute Resolution Process.  

h) Review the complete and proper exercise of Pensions Ombudsman cases.  

i) Review the implementation of revised policies and procedures following changes to the 
Scheme.  

j) Review the arrangements for the training of Board members and those elected 
members and officers with delegated responsibilities for the management and 
administration of the Scheme.  

k) Review the complete and proper exercise of employer and administering authority 
discretions.  

l) Review the outcome of internal and external audit reports.  

m) Review draft accounts and Fund annual report.  

n) Review the compliance of particular cases, projects or process on request of the 
Committee.  

o) Any other area within the statement of purpose (i.e. assisting the Administering 
Authority) the Board deems appropriate.  

 
The second core function of the Board is to ensure the effective and efficient governance 
and administration of the Scheme. Within this extent of this core function the Board may 
determine the areas it wishes to consider including but not restricted to:  
 

a) Assist with the development of improved customer services.  

b) Monitor performance of administration, governance and investments against key 
performance targets and indicators.  

c) Review the effectiveness of processes for the appointment of advisors and suppliers to 
the Administering Authority.  

d) Monitor investment costs including custodian and transaction costs.  

e) Monitor internal and external audit reports.  

f) Review the risk register as it relates to the scheme manager function of the authority.  

g) Assist with the development of improved management, administration and governance 
structures and policies.  

h) Review the outcome of actuarial reporting and valuations.  

i) Assist in the development and monitoring of process improvements on request of 
Committee.  

j) Assist in the development of asset voting and engagement processes and compliance 
with the UK Stewardship Code.  

 
 
Pension Investment Advisory Panel  
 
The Pension Investment Advisory Panel provides the Pension Committee with strategic 
advice concerning changes to the Fund's asset allocation, the termination and appointment 
of Investment Managers and Independent Financial Advisers.  It is not a decision-making 
body or formal committee, and does not normally meet in public. 
  

Page 12



 

 

The Chief Financial Officer appoints the members of the Pension Investment Advisory 
Panel, which comprises of:  
 

 four County Councillors 

 the Chief Financial Officer  

 the Finance Manager– Pensions, Treasury Management and Capital and;  

 one employee representative.  
 

The composition of the Pension Investment Advisory Panel is intended to reflect the abilities 
and knowledge of the individuals in matters relating to the investment of the Fund's assets 
rather than political representation.  All members of the Panel are entitled to vote if 
necessary for the Panel to fulfil its role and provide advice to the Pension Committee 
regarding the administration of the fund's assets. 
 
The Chairman of the Panel is appointed from amongst its members by the Chairman of the 
Pensions Committee. 
 
Pension Investment Advisory Panel Terms of reference: 
 
The Pension Investment Advisory Panel meets at least quarterly or otherwise as necessary 
to produce strategic advice to the Pension Committee on: 

 

 Changes to the Statement of Investment Principles, including the strategic 
benchmark for asset allocation, Investment Manager benchmarks and 
Investment Manager targets. 

 The termination and appointment of Investment Managers and associated 
professional service providers. 

 The termination and appointment of the Fund's Independent Financial Adviser, 
Performance Measurement Consultant and Global Custodian. 

 
The Pension Investment Advisory Panel also: 
 

 Monitors performance of total Fund assets and individual Investment Managers.  

 Monitors compliance with the Statement of Investment Principles. 

 Monitors performance of the Independent Financial Advisor. 
 
 
Pension Administration Advisory Forum 
  
The Pension Administration Advisory Forum provides the Pension Committee with advice 
concerning the administration of the Fund. It is neither a decision-making body nor formal 
committee, and will not normally meet in public.  No voting rights apply to the Pension 
Administration Advisory Forum as the purpose of the Forum is to provide transparency of 
information to scheme employers and for scheme employers to provide advice to, and raise 
concerns with, the employer representative.   
 
The Pension Administration Advisory Forum comprises: 
 

 all Fund employers who wish to attend following invitation by the Administering 
Authority 

 the Fund's Actuary (ad hoc basis) 

 the Administering Authority's Pensions Manager and HR Service Centre Manager 

 and the employer representative and employee representative of the Pension 
Committee.  

Page 13



 

 

Pension Administration Advisory Forum Terms of Reference: 
 
The Forum meets at least twice a year or otherwise as necessary to: 

 

 Discuss an Annual Administration Report and respond to any issues raised by 
employers. 

 Discuss Government Consultations relating to the administration and benefits of 
the LGPS. 

 Discuss the outcomes of the triennial/interim valuations and respond to any 
issues raised by employers. 

 Discuss the minutes and updates from the Pension Committee and ensure flow 
of information between the Pension Committee and the Forum. 

 To advise on service delivery to all stakeholders. 

 To bring stakeholders perspective to all aspects of the Pension Fund business. 

 To ask the Administering Authority and the Pension Committee to consider 
topics which affect the Pension Fund. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

 

Appendix C - Advisers as of March 2017 
 
AllenBridgeEpic – Philip Hebson   
Investment policy, general investment matters.  
 
Mercers 
Actuarial matters  
 
LAPFF  
Company governance issues.  
 
BNY Mellon  
Custodian, Stocklending.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

 

Appendix D - Statement of Investment Beliefs 
 
The Fund’s investment beliefs outline key aspects of how it sets and manages the Fund’s 
exposures to investment risk. They are as follows: 
 
Financial Market Beliefs  
 

- There exists a relationship between the level of investment risk taken and the rate of 
expected investment return. As taking calculated risks does not guarantee returns, 
investment losses or below expected returns are possible outcomes.  

- Markets are dynamic and are not always efficient, and therefore offer opportunities 
for skilled active managers.  

- In making investments in illiquid assets, a return premium should be sought.  

- Diversification is a key technique available to institutional investors for improving risk-
adjusted returns.  

- The fund believes that investing for the long term can add value to the fund as it 
allows the fund manager to focus on long term value and use short term volatility to 
establish favourable investments.  

- Where an asset class/strategy is not expected to help in delivering the risk adjusted 
investment return required it should not be held.  

 
Investment Strategy/Process Beliefs  
 
Clear investment objectives are essential. Return and risk should be considered relative to 
the Fund’s liabilities, funding position and contribution strategy.  
 
Risk should be viewed both qualitatively and quantitatively. Particular focus should be given 
to the risk of loss and also to the nature and likelihood of extreme events so that the Fund is 
not a forced seller of assets. 
 
 

- Strategic asset allocation is a key determinant of risk and return, and thus is typically 
more important than manager or stock selection.  

- Equities are expected to generate superior long-term returns relative to Government 
bonds.  

- Alternative asset class investments are designed to further diversify the portfolio and 
improve its risk-return characteristics.  

- Active management can add value over time but it is not guaranteed and can be hard 
to access. Where generating ‘alpha’ is particularly difficult, passive management is 
preferred.  

- Operational, counterparty, conflicts of interest and reputational risk need assessment 
and management, in addition to investment risk.  

- Concentrated portfolios (smaller numbers of holdings or less external managers) 
allow for greater investment focus, lower investment costs and enable more focused 
engagement with Responsible investment. 

- Managing fees and costs matter especially in low-return environments. Fee 
arrangements with our fund managers – as well as the remuneration policies of 
investee companies – should be aligned with the Fund’s long-term interests.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

 

Organisational Beliefs  
 

- Effective governance and decision-making structures that promote decisiveness, 
efficiency and accountability are effective and add value to the Fund.  

- When outperformance of a desired benchmark is not possible the fund will use index 
funds, financial instruments or proxies (Investments that share similar characteristics) 
to gain exposure to the asset class in the most cost effective way.  

- Investment costs are necessary to generate outperformance in asset classes where 
outperformance is achievable. Investment costs are a certain cost that should be fully 
transparent and managed by the operator in the best interests of the pension Fund.  

 
Responsible Investment Beliefs  
 

- Effective management of financially material ESG risks should support the Fund’s 
requirement to protect returns over the long term.  

- Investee companies with robust governance structures should be better positioned to 
handle the effects of shocks and stresses of future events.  

- There are some investment opportunities arising from environmental and social 
challenges which can be captured so long as they are aligned with the Fund’s 
investment objectives and strategy.  

- Responsible Investment should be integrated into the Investment process.  

- The Fund will manage Responsible Investment factors through engagement rather 
than exclusions.  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

The Audit Plan 

for Worcestershire County Pension Fund 

Year ended 31 March 2017 

John Gregory 

Director 

T 0121 232 5333 

E  john.Gregory@uk.gt.com 

Helen Lillington 

Audit Manager 

T 0121 232 5312 

E  helen.m.Lillington@uk.gt.com 

Martin Stevens 

In-charge Auditor 

T 0121 232 5313 

E  martin.p.stevens@uk.gt.com 

24 March 2017 

Cover page 

 

Guidance note 

Please ensure you enter the 

date of the issue of the report. 

 

P
age 19



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund   |  2016/17 2 

Chartered Accountants 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP.  

A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and 

its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. Please see grant-thornton.co.uk for further details. 

This Audit Plan  sets out for the benefit of those charged with governance (in the case of Worcestershire County Pension Fund, the Audit and Governance Committee), an 

overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260. This document is to help you understand the 

consequences of our work, discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality with us, and identify any areas where you may request us to undertake additional procedures. 

It also helps us gain a better understanding of the Fund and your environment. The contents of the Plan have been discussed with management.  

We are required to perform our audit in line with Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and in accordance with the Code of Practice issued by the National Audit Office 

(NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2015. Our responsibilities under the Code are to give an opinion on the Fund's financial statements.  

As auditors we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland), which is directed towards forming and 

expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the financial 

statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair 

view. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process.  

It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change. In particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks 

which may affect the Fund or all weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit. We do not accept any responsibility for any 

loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other 

purpose.  

We look forward to working with you during the course of the audit. 

Yours sincerely 

John Gregory 

Engagement Lead 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 

The Colmore Building 

Colmore Circus Queensway 

Birmingham 

B4 6AT 

T +44 (0) 121 212 4000 

www.grant-thornton.co.uk  

24 March 2017 

Dear Members of the Audit and Governance Committee 

 

 

 

Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Pension Fund for the year ending 31 March 2017 

Worcestershire County Pension Fund 

County Hall 

Spetchley Road 

Worcester 

WR5 2NP 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

The disclaimer paragraph 

should not be edited or 

removed as this is there for 

the auditor’s protection and 

its absence could possibly 

weaken our defence if a 

complaint or claim is made. 

 

 

 

Letter 

P
age 20



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Contents 

Section  

Understanding your business and key developments  

Materiality  

Significant risks identified  

Other risks identified              

Results of interim audit work  

The audit cycle 

Audit fees  

Independence and non-audit services  

Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance 

  

3 

P
age 21



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund |  2016/17 

Understanding your business and key developments 

Key challenges 

Financial reporting changes 

 

Developments 

 

Our response 

 We will discuss with you your progress in implementing the requirements of the new investment regulations, highlighting any areas of good practice or concern which we have identified. 

 We will discuss your progress in  implementing revised governance structures, and share our experiences gained nationally. 

 We aim to complete all our substantive audit work of your financial statements by 30th June 2017. 

 As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements accurately reflect the  changes in the 2016/17 Code  

Investment Regulations 

The new investment regulations came into force on 1 

November 2016 and require administering authorities to 

publish new Investment Strategy Statements  by 1st April 

2017. The statement must be in accordance with guidance 

issued by the Secretary of State and include a variety of 

information.  This will include the authority's assessment of 

the suitability of particular investments and types of 

investments, the authority's approach to risk, including the 

ways in which risks are to be measured and managed and 

the authority's approach to pooling investments, including 

the use of collective investment vehicles and shared 

services.  These regulations also provide the Secretary of 

State with the power to intervene in the investment function 

of a fund if he/she is satisfied that the authority is failing to 

act in accordance with the regulations. 

Pooling Governance  

Arrangements for pooling of investments continue to develop, 

with DCLG expecting administering authorities to be transferring 

liquid assets from April 2018. The structure and governance of 

these arrangements will need to be implemented before this 

date. These arrangements are likely to have a significant  

impact on how the investments are managed, who makes 

decisions and how investment activities are actioned and 

monitored.  Although much of this operational responsibility will 

move to the investment pool operator, it is key that 

administering authorities (through Pension Committees and 

Pension Boards) continue to operate strong governance 

arrangements, particularly during the transition phase where 

funds are likely to have a mix of investment management 

arrangements.  

CIPFA Code of Practice 2016/17 (the Code) 

The main change to the Code for Pension Funds is the 

extension of the fair value disclosures required under the 

Code from 2016/17.   

The greatest impact is expected to be for those Funds 

holding directly owned property and/or shares and Level 3 

investments.  These are reflected in CIPFA's pension fund 

example accounts alongside further changes including an 

analysis of Investment Management expenses in line with 

CIPFA's Local Government Pension Scheme Management 

Costs guidance, a realignment of investment classifications , 

and an additional disclosure note covering remuneration of 

key management personnel which has been  included in 

related party transactions. 

Earlier closedown 

The Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 require 

councils to bring forward 

the approval and audit of 

financial statements to 31 

July by the 2017/2018 

financial year. This will 

impact not only upon the 

production of the Fund 

accounts but also on 

earlier requests for 

information from employers 

within the Fund. 

Revised disclosures 

The key area reported  in 

the audit findings report 

last year was the need to 

enhance the disclosures, 

particularly around level 3 

investments.  CIPFA has 

issued revised example 

accounts  which should be 

considered as part of the 

accounts preparation 

process 

Triennial actuarial 

valuation of the fund 

The results of the triennial 

review have now been 

reported.  Overall the 

funding level has improved 

from the date of the last 

valuation. Members will 

need to consider the 

outcome of this review and 

the impact this will have on 

the fund in future investment 

decisions. 

 

New Financial System 

From 1 April 2017 the 

accounts will be produced 

using a new financial 

system.  While this will 

have limited impact on the 

audit for the 2016/17 

financial statements it 

represents a significant 

investment of time for the 

finance staff in the run up 

to implementation. 

Understanding 

your business  

Guidance note 

KPI table – these should be the 

key indicators that client 

management use to monitor 

business performance. Please 

update as required. 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

 

P
age 22



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Materiality 
In performing our audit, we apply the concept of materiality, following the requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) (ISA) 320: Materiality in planning and 

performing an audit. The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary 

misstatements but also to disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. An item does not necessarily have to be large to be considered 

to have a material effect on the financial statements. An item may be considered to be material by nature, for example, when greater precision is required (e.g. senior manager salaries 

and allowances).  

We determine planning materiality (materiality for the financial statements as a whole determined at the planning stage of the audit) in order to estimate the tolerable level of 

misstatement in the financial statements, assist in establishing the scope of our audit engagement and audit tests, calculate sample sizes and assist in evaluating the effect of known 

and likely misstatements in the financial statements. 

We have determined planning materiality based upon professional judgement in the context of our knowledge of the Fund. In line with previous years, we have calculated financial 

statements materiality based on a proportion of net assets for the Fund. For purposes of planning the audit we have determined overall materiality to be £19,523k (being 1% of net 

assets). In the previous year, we determined materiality to be £19,873k (being 1% of net assets). Our assessment of materiality is kept under review throughout the audit process and 

we will advise you if we revise this during the audit. 

Under ISA 450, auditors also set an amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial and would not need to be accumulated or reported to those charged with governance 

because we would not expect that the accumulation of such amounts would have a material effect on the financial statements. "Trivial" matters are clearly inconsequential, whether 

taken individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any criteria of size, nature or circumstances. We have defined the amount below which misstatements would be clearly trivial 

to be £976k. 

ISA 320 also requires auditors to determine separate, lower, materiality levels where there  are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures for which 

misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users'. We have 

identified the following items where separate materiality levels are appropriate: 

Balance/transaction/disclosure Explanation Materiality level 

Management expenses Due to public interest in these disclosures. 5% of the value of 

expenses. 

Related party transactions Due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory requirement for them to be made. 

Individual mis-statements will also be evaluated with reference to how material they are to the 

other party. 

£20,000 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

Ensure you amend the  table to 

reflect the  specific materiality 

levels  you have agreed for your 

audit .  

Please bear in mind that you will 

need to  test the balances  to the 

specific materiality levels you 

set, so do not set unrealistic 

materiality levels  for  these 

items. 

Auditor's remuneration should  

not be included  as a balance 

with a specific materiality level  

as it would not influence the 

economic decisions of users. 

 

5 

Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 

users taken on the basis of the financial statements; Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a 

misstatement, or a combination of both; and Judgments about matters that are material to users of the financial statements are based on a consideration of the common financial 

information needs of users as a group. The possible effect of misstatements on specific individual users, whose needs may vary widely, is not considered. (ISA (UK and Ireland) 

320) 

P
age 23



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Significant risks identified 

An audit is focused on risks. Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK and Ireland) as risks that, in the judgment of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In 

identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher 

risk of material misstatement. 

Significant risk Description Audit procedures 

The revenue cycle 

includes fraudulent 

transactions 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a 

presumed risk that revenue streams may be 

misstated due to the improper recognition of 

revenue. 

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue streams at 

Worcestershire County Pension Fund, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from revenue 

recognition can be rebutted, because: 

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition 

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited 

• The culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Worcestershire County Council, 

mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable 

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Worcestershire Pension Fund. 

Management over-

ride of controls 

Under ISA (UK and Ireland) 240 there is a non-

rebuttable presumed risk that the risk of 

management over-ride of controls is present in all 

entities. 

Work completed to date: 

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

 Review of journal entry process and controls. 

Further work planned:  

 Review of accounting estimates, judgments and decisions made by management 

 Testing of journal entries. 

 Review of unusual significant transactions 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

6 

"Significant risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. Non-routine transactions are transactions that are unusual, due to either size or nature, 

and that therefore occur infrequently. Judgmental matters may include the development of accounting estimates for which there is significant measurement uncertainty." (ISA (UK 

and Ireland) 315) . In making the review of unusual significant transactions "the auditor shall treat identified significant related party transactions outside the entity's normal course of 

business as giving rise to significant risks." (ISA (UK and Ireland) 550) 

P
age 24



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Significant risks identified (continued) 

Significant risk Description Audit procedures 

Level 3 Investments 

Valuation is incorrect 

 

Under ISA 315 significant  risks often  relate to 

significant non-routine transactions and 

judgemental matters. Level 3 investments by their 

very nature require a significant degree of 

judgement to reach an appropriate valuation at year 

end. 

 

Work completed to date: 

 We have updated our understanding of your process for valuing level 3 investment through 

discussions with relevant personnel from the Pension Fund during the interim audit. 

 We have performed walkthrough tests of the controls identified in the process. 

Further work planned: 

 For a sample of investments, test valuations by obtaining and reviewing the audited accounts, 

(where available) at latest date for individual investments and agreeing these to the fund manager 

reports at that date.  Reconciliation of those values to the values at 31st March with reference to 

known movements in the intervening period. 

 Review the qualifications of the fund managers as experts to value the level 3 investments at year 

end and gain an understanding of how the valuation of these investments has been reached. 

 To review the nature and basis of estimated values and consider what assurance management has 

over the year end valuations provided for these types of investments. 

 Review the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used. 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Delete unused rows if there are 

no ‘other’ entity-specific risks. 

We have also identified the following significant risks of material misstatement from our understanding of the entity. We set out below the work we have completed to date 

and the work we plan to address these risks. 

7 

P
age 25



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Other risks identified 
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement 

cannot be reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of 

substantive work. The risk of misstatement for an RPR or other risk is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly 

judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of the business. 

Reasonably possible risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Investment Income 

 

Investment activity not valid. Investment income not 

accurate. (Accuracy) 

 

Work completed to date: 

 Existing key controls have been walked through to confirm operational effectiveness. 

 

Further work planned: 

 We will review the reconciliation of information provided by the fund managers, the 

custodian and the Pension Fund's own records and seek explanations for variances. 

 Complete a predictive analytical review for different types of investments. 

Investment values – Level 

2 investments 

Valuation is incorrect. (Valuation net) Work completed to date: 

 Existing key controls have been walked through to confirm operational effectiveness. 

 

Further work planned: 

 We will review the reconciliation of information provided by the fund managers, the 

custodian and the Pension Fund's own records and seek explanations for variances.  

 Test a sample of level 2 investments to independent information from custodian/manager 

on units and on unit prices. 

Contributions Recorded contributions not correct (Occurrence) 

 

Work completed to date: 

 Existing key controls have been walked through to confirm operational effectiveness. 

 

Further work planned: 

 Test a sample of contributions to source data to gain assurance over their accuracy and 

occurrence. 

 Rationalise contributions received with reference to changes in member body payrolls 

and numbers of contributing pensioners to ensure that any unexpected trends are 

satisfactorily explained. 

8 

P
age 26



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Other risks identified (continued) 

Reasonably possible risks Description of risk Audit procedures 

Benefits payable Benefits improperly computed/claims liability 

understated (Completeness, accuracy and 

occurrence) 

Work completed to date: 

 Existing key controls have been walked through to confirm operational effectiveness. 

 

Further work planned: 

 Test a sample of individual pensions in payment by reference to member files. 

 We will rationalise pensions paid with reference to changes in pensioner numbers and 

increases applied in the year to ensure that any unusual trends are satisfactorily 

explained. 

Member Data  Member data not correct. (Rights and Obligations) Work completed to date: 

 Existing key controls have been walked through to confirm operational effectiveness. 

 Sample testing up to month 10 of changes to member data made during the year to 

source documentation. 

 

Further work planned: 

 Controls testing over annual/monthly reconciliations and verifications with individual 

members. 

 Sample testing for months 11 and 12 of changes to member data made during the year to 

source documentation. 

9 

"In respect of some risks, the auditor may judge that it is not possible or practicable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence only from substantive procedures. Such risks may 

relate to the inaccurate or incomplete recording of routine and significant classes of transactions or account balances, the characteristics of which often permit highly automated 

processing with little or no manual intervention. In such cases, the entity’s controls over such risks are relevant to the audit and the auditor shall obtain an understanding of them." 

(ISA (UK and Ireland) 315)  

P
age 27



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Other risks identified (continued) 

Other material balances and transactions 

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for 

each material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures 

will not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in the previous sections but will include: 

• Transfers in 

• Transfers out 

• Administrative expenses 

• Cash deposits 

• Current assets 

• Non current assets 

• Current liabilities 

• Actuarial Valuation and Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits 

• Financial Instruments 

10 

Going concern 

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption 

in the preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a 

going concern” (ISA (UK and Ireland) 570). We will review the management's assessment of the going concern assumption and the disclosures in the financial 

statements.  

P
age 28



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Results of  interim audit work 

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below: 
 

Work performed Conclusion 

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall 

arrangements. Our work has not identified any issues which we wish 

to bring to your attention.   

 

We have also reviewed internal audit's work on investment 

management. We have not identified any significant weaknesses 

impacting on our responsibilities. 

Overall, we have concluded that the internal audit service 

provides an independent and satisfactory service to the 

Council and that internal audit work contributes to an effective 

internal control environment.  

We have however noted that the Internal Audit Service have 

not yet had an independent assessment as required by the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  The standards requires 

the internal audit service to have an independent review once 

every five years and for full compliance this review should be 

completed by the 1st April 2018. 

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control 

environment relevant to the preparation of the financial statements 

including: 

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values 

• Commitment to competence 

• Participation by those charged with governance 

• Management's philosophy and operating style 

• Organisational structure 

• Assignment of authority and responsibility 

• Human resource policies and practices 

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Fund's financial statements. 

Review of information technology 

controls 

Our information systems specialist performed a high level review of 

the general IT control environment, as part of the overall review of 

the internal controls system.  

IT (information technology) controls were observed to have been 

implemented in accordance with our documented understanding.  

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are 

likely to adversely impact on the Council's financial statements  

Our work has however identified a number of 

recommendations for improvement, which are currently under 

consideration by officers. 

11 

P
age 29



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Results of  interim audit work (continued) 

Work performed Conclusion 

Walkthrough testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the Fund's controls 

operating in areas where we consider that there is a risk of material 

misstatement to the financial statements. 

Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your 

attention. Internal controls have been implemented by the Fund in 

accordance with our documented understanding. 

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach. 

Journal entry controls We have reviewed the Fund's journal entry policies and procedures 
as part of determining our journal entry testing strategy and have not 
identified any material weaknesses which are likely to adversely 
impact on the Fund's control environment or financial statements. 

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on 

our audit approach. 

Early substantive testing We have carried out testing of changes to member data recorded to 
month ten.  Testing identified that one member had been incorrectly 
classified as deferred rather than frozen. 

Officers have been able to isolate this population and are 

reviewing the data to determine if this is an isolated error.  We 

will review the results of this work when we complete the 

testing at year end. 

12 

P
age 30



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

The audit cycle 

The audit timeline 

 

Guidance note 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Add any other agreed 

milestones or outputs agreed 

with your client 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Logistics 

Key dates: 

 

 

 

Audit phases: 

 

 

 

Year end:  

31 MAR 2017 

Close out:  

19 JUN 2017 

Audit committee:  

21 JUL 2017 

Sign off:  

31 JUL 2017 

Planning  

JAN 2017 

Interim   

w/c 30 JAN 2017 

Final   

w/c 30 MAY 2017 

Completion   

JUN 2017 

Key elements 

 Planning meeting with 

management to inform audit 

planning and agree audit timetable 

 Discussions with those charged 

with governance and internal audit 

to inform audit planning 

 

Key elements 

 Document design effectiveness of key 

accounting systems and processes 

 Review of key judgements and 

estimates 

 Early substantive audit testing 

 Issue audit working paper 

requirements to management 

 Discuss draft Audit Plan with 

management 

 Issue the Audit Plan to management 

and Audit and Governance Committee 

 

 

Key elements 

 Audit teams onsite to 

complete detailed audit testing 

 Weekly update meetings with 

management as required 

 

Key elements 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to 

management 

 Meeting with management to discuss 

Audit Findings 

 Issue draft Audit Findings to Audit and 

Governance Committee 

 Audit Findings presentation to Audit and 

Governance Committee 

 Finalise approval and signing of financial 

statements and audit report 

Debrief  

AUG 2017 

P
age 31



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 
 

Fees 

2016/17 

£ 

2015/16 

£ 

Pension fund audit 24,963 24,963 

IAS 19 fee variation 1,193 1,193 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) 26,156 26,156 

Audit Fees 

Our fee assumptions include: 

 Supporting schedules to all figures in the accounts are supplied by the 

agreed dates and in accordance with the agreed upon information 

request list 

 The scope of the audit, and the Fund and its activities, have not 

changed significantly 

 The Fund will make available management and accounting staff to 

help us locate information and to provide explanations 

 The proposed fee variation for IAS 19 above takes account of the 

work we are required to undertake for admitted bodies within the 

PSAA regime and is consistent with that requested in prior years 

 The accounts presented for audit are materially accurate, supporting 

working papers and evidence agree to the accounts, and all audit 

queries are resolved promptly. 

 

What is included within our fees 

 A reliable and risk-focused audit appropriate for your business 

 Feed back on your systems and processes, and identifying potential risks, opportunities 

and savings 

 Invitations to events hosted by Grant Thornton in your sector, as well as the wider 

finance community 

 Ad-hoc telephone calls and queries 

 Technical briefings and updates 

 Regular contact to discuss strategy and other important areas 

 A review of accounting policies for appropriateness and consistency 

 Annual technical updates for members of your finance team 

 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit.  At the 

time of preparation of the Audit 

Plan it is unlikely that full 

information as to all fees 

charged by GTI network firms 

will be available. Disclosure of 

these fees, threats to 

independence and safeguards 

will therefore be included in the 

Audit Findings report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

client. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Fees for other services 

 

Fees for other services are detailed on the following page, reflect those agreed at the 

time of issuing our Audit Plan. Any changes will be reported in our Audit Findings 

Report and Annual Audit Letter. 

P
age 32



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for  Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 
 

Independence and non-audit services 

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK and Ireland) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of matters relating to our independence. 

 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have 

complied with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards and we confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements. 

 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards. 

 

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to Worcestershire County Pension Fund. The following 

audit related and non-audit services were identified for the Fund for 2016/17 to date: 

The above services are consistent with the Administering Authority's policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. 

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services (to be) undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP (and Grant Thornton International 

Limited network member Firms) in the current financial year. Full details of all fees charged for audit and non-audit services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant 

Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit. 

 

Guidance note 

'Fees for other services' is to be 

used where we need to 

communicate agreed fees in 

advance of the audit. At the time 

of preparation of the Audit Plan 

it is unlikely that full information 

as to all fees charged by GTI 

network firms will be available. 

Disclosure of these fees, threats 

to independence and 

safeguards will therefore be 

included in the Audit Findings 

report. 

 

Red text is generic and should 

be updated specifically for your 

group’s. 

Once updated, change text 

colour back to black. 

Independence and 

non-audit services 

Fees for other services 

Service Fees £ Planned outputs 

Audit related 

None None 

Non-audit related 

None None 

P
age 33



©  2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   The Audit Plan for Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund  |  2016/17 

Communication of  audit matters with those charged with governance 

Our communication plan 

Audit 

Plan 

Audit 

Findings 

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those 

charged with governance 

 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit. Form, timing 

and expected general content of communications 

 

Views about the qualitative aspects  of the entity's accounting and 

financial reporting practices, significant matters and issues arising 

during the audit and written representations that have been sought 

 

Confirmation of independence and objectivity   

A statement that we have complied with  relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence,  relationships and other 

matters which might  be thought to bear on independence.  

Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK LLP and 

network firms, together with  fees charged.   

Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence 

 

 

 

Material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit  

Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or 

others which results in material misstatement of the financial 

statements 

 

Non compliance with laws and regulations  

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter  

Uncorrected misstatements  

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties  

Significant matters in relation to going concern   

International Standard on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISA) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK 

and Ireland) prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those 

charged with governance, and which we set out in the table opposite.   

This document, The Audit Plan, outlines our audit strategy and plan to deliver the audit, 

while The Audit Findings will be issued prior to approval of the financial statements  and 

will present key issues and other matters arising from the audit, together with an 

explanation as to how these have been resolved. 

We will communicate any adverse or unexpected findings affecting the audit on a timely 

basis, either informally or via a report to the Fund. 

Respective responsibilities 

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs (UK and 

Ireland), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial 

statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged 

with governance. 

This plan has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited 

(http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/) 

We have been appointed as the Fund's independent external auditors by the Audit 

Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public bodies 

in England at the time of our appointment. As external auditors, we have a broad remit 

covering finance and governance matters.  

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice ('the 

Code') issued by the NAO and includes nationally prescribed and locally determined 

work (https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/). Our work considers the 

Fund's key risks when reaching our conclusions under the Code.  

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with 

governance of their responsibilities. 

It is the responsibility of the Fund to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for the 

conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted 

for.  We have considered how the Fund is fulfilling these responsibilities. 

16 

P
age 34

http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/appointing-auditors/terms-of-appointment/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/
https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/about-code/


© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.  

'Grant Thornton' means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited 
liability partnership.  

Grant Thornton is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 
(Grant Thornton International). References to 'Grant Thornton' are 
to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms operate 
and refer to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a 
worldwide partnership. Services are delivered independently by 
member firms, which are not responsible for the services or activities 
of one another. Grant Thornton International does not provide 
services to clients.  

grant-thornton.co.uk 

17 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

PENSION BOARD TRAINING RECORD 
 

 

 

 

NAME 24 Nov/8 Dec 

2015 

Pension 

Admin – Part 

1 

1 Dec/14 Dec 

2015 

Pension 

Admin – Part 

2 

 

20 Jan 2016 

Actuarial 

Training 

2 Sept 2016 

Pension 

Regulator 

 

CIPFA Local 

Pension Board 

Seminar  

29/30 June 

2017 

LGA Annual 

LGPS 

''Trustees'' 

Conference  

  

KEITH BRAY 8/12 14/12 Y      

MR M J HART   Y      

LYN-MARIE CHAPMAN 24/11 1/12 Y Y     

MR D HARLOW    Y     

KEITH SHEPPARD   Y N/A     

STUART HARRISON N/A N/A N/A      

         

 

P
age 37



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund 

No. Activity Q4 2015 Q1 2016 Q2 2016 Q3 2016 Q4 2016

1
Review of Fund communications with employers and members

2 Review Fund investment performance 

3 Review Pension Administration performance

4 Investigate the experience of being a member of the Fund 

5 Review Fund data storage, accuracy and security

6 Review of value for money of the Fund

7 Understanding the risk register

8 Understanding the audit process

9 LGPS Central update 

10 Pension Investment update - noting manager change

11 Pension Administration update 

12 Pension Board Annual Report 

13 Pension Board member training plan

14 LGPS Central and WCC Pool Business Cases 

15 Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16

16 Role of the Pensions Regulator 

17 Actuarial Valuation Initial Results 

18 GAD Section 13 dry run report 

19 Green Investment Bank additional commitment 

20 JP Morgan Bonds - update and fee proposal

21 LGPS Central Governance 

22 Strategic Asset Allocation Review 

23 Actuarial Valuation - Full Results 

24 Risk Register Update 

25 Malvern Hills Conservators 

26 LGPS Central Cost Share 

27 Investment Strategy Statement 

28 External Audit Plan 2016/17

Quarter for Board activity to be actioned at the arranged Board meeting

Pension Board Work Plan

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Pensions Committee - 13 March 2017
	5 External Audit Plan 2016/17
	6 Pension Board Member Training
	7 Pension Board Work Plan

